IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. _____

EDUARDO LOPEZ,

Appellant,

٧.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT, OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

LARRY HELM SPALDING Capital Collateral Representative Florida Bar No. 0125540

GAIL E. ANDERSON Assistant CCR Florida Bar No. 0841544

TODD G. SCHER Staff Attorney Florida Bar No. 0899641

OFFICE OF THE CAPITAL COLLATERAL REPRESENTATIVE 1533 South Monroe Street Tallahassee, FL 32301 (904) 487-4376

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

ARGUMENT VII

ARGUMENT VIII

ARGUMENT IX

ARGUMENT X

ARGUMENT XI

ARGUMENT XII

ARGUMENT XIII

ARGUMENT XIV

ARGUMENT XV

ARGUMENT XVI

ARGUMENT XVII

ARGUMENT XVIII

v

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

1

.

.

0

•

•

<u>Agurs v. United States</u> , 427 U.S. 97 (1976)
<u>Ake v. Oklahoma,</u> 105 S. Ct. 1087 (1985)
<u>Alcorta v. Texas</u> , 355 U.S. 28 (1957)
<u>Arango v. State</u> , 497 So. 2d 1161 (Fla. 1986) 105
Balderrama v. State, 433 So. 2d 1311 (Fla. 2d DCA 1983) 94
<u>Bassett v. State</u> , 541 So. 2d 596 (Fla. 1989)
<u>Bates v. Dugger,</u> So. 2d, No. 74, 972 (Fla. July 23, 1992)
Beck v. Alabama, 447 U.S. 625 (1980)
<u>Bedford v. State</u> , 16 F.L.W. 665 (Fla. 1991) 74
Blake v. Kemp, 758 F.2d 523 (11th Cir. 1985) 74
Blanco v. Singletary, 943 F.2d 1477 (11th Cir. 1991)
Blanco v. Wainwright, 507 So. 2d 1377 (Fla. 1987)
Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1967)
<u>Brady v. Unites States,</u> 397 U.S. 742, 90 S. Ct. 1463,
25 L.Ed.2d 747 (1970)
Breedlove v. Singletary, 595 So. 2d 8 (Fla. 1992) 12
Brewer v. Aiken, 935 F.2d 850 (7th Cir. 1991)

Brewer v. Aiken, 935 F.2d 850 (7th Cir. 1991)
Brown v. State, 426 So. 2d 76 (1st DCA 1983)
<u>Brown v. State</u> , 526 So. 2d 903 (Fla. 1988)
<u>Bundy v. Dugger</u> , 850 F.2d 1402 (11th Cir. 1988) 49
<u>Bundy v. State</u> , 471 So. 2d 9 (Fla. 1985) 24
<u>Caldwell v. Mississippi</u> , 472 U.S. 320 (1985)
<u>Campbell v. State</u> , 571 So. 2d 415 (Fla. 1990)
<u>Caraway v. Beto,</u> 421 F.2d 636 (5th Cir. 1970)
<u>Carter v. State</u> , 560 So. 2d 1166 (Fla. 1990) 74
<u>Chambers v. Armontrout,</u> 907 F. 2d 825 (8th Cir. 1990)(en banc)
<u>Chambers v. Mississippi</u> , 410 U.S. 284 (1973)
<u>Chaney v. Brown</u> , 730 F.2d 1334 (10th Cir. 1984)
<u>Chatom v. White,</u> 858 F.2d 1479 (11th Cir. 1988), <u>cert. denied</u> , 489 U.S. 1054 (1989)
<u>Clark v. State</u> , 443 So. 2d 973 (Fla. 1983)
<u>Code v. Montgomerv,</u> 725 F.2d 1316 (11th Cir. 1983) 53
<u>Cooper v. State</u> , 581 So. 2d 49 (Fla. 1991)
<u>Cowley v. Stricklin,</u> 929 F 2d 640 (11th Cir. 1991)

<u>Cunningham v. Zant</u> , 928 F.2d 1006 (11th Cir. 1991)
<u>Davis v. Alabama</u> , 596 F.2d 1214 (5th Cir. 1979), <u>vacated as moot</u> , 446 U.S. 903 (1980) 52
<u>Dennis v. United States</u> , 384 U.S. 855 (1966)
<u>Diaz v. United States,</u> 223 U.S. 442 (1912)
<u>Dolinski v. State</u> , 576 So. 2d 271 (Fla. 1991)
Douglas v. Wainwright, 714 F.2d 1532 (11th Cir. 1983), <u>vacated and remanded</u> , 468 U.S. 1206 (1984), <u>adhered to on remand</u> , 739 F.2d 531 (1984)
<u>Downs v. State</u> , 574 So.2d 1095 (Fla. 1991)
<u>DuBoise v. State</u> , 520 So. 2d 260 (Fla. 1988)
<u>Eddings v. Oklahoma</u> , 455 U.S. 104 (1982)
<u>Engberg v. Mever</u> , 820 P.2d 70 (Wyo. 1991) 81
<u>Engle v. Dugger,</u> 576 So. 2d 696 (Fla. 1991)
<u>Ester v. United States</u> , 335 F.2d 609 (5th Cir. 1964)
<u>Eutzy v. Dugger,</u> 746 F.Supp. 1492 (N.D. Fla. 1989), <u>aff'd</u> , No. 89-4014 (11th Cir. 1990)61
<u>Fead v. State</u> , 512 So. 2d 176 (Fla. 1987)
<u>Francis v. State,</u> 413 So. 2d 493 (Fla. 1982)
<u>Furman v. Georgia,</u> 408 U.S. 238 (1972)

<u>Gaines v. Hopper</u> , 575 F.2d 1147 (5th Cir. 1978) 50
<u>Gideon v. Wainwright</u> , 372 U.S. 335 (1963)
<u>Giglio v. United States,</u> 405 U.S. 150 (1972)
<u>Godfrey v. Georgia,</u> 446 U.S. 420 (1980)
<u>Goodwin v. Balkcom,</u> 684 F.2d 794 (11th Cir. 1982) 52
<u>Gorham v. State</u> , 521 So. 2d 1067 (Fla. 1988) 11
<u>Gorham v. State</u> , No. 77,366 (Fla., March 19, 1992)
<u>Gregg v. Georgia,</u> 428 U.S. 153 (1976)
<u>Grossman v. State</u> , 525 So. 2d 833 (Fla. 1988)
<u>Hall v. State</u> , 541 So. 2d 1125 (Fla. 1989)
<u>Haliman v. State</u> , 560 So. 2d 233 (Fla. 1990)
<u>Hansbrough v. State,</u> 509 So. 2d 1081 (Fla. 1987)
<u>Hardwick v. State,</u> 521 So. 2d 1071 (Fla.), <u>cert</u> . <u>denied</u> , 488 U.S. 871 (1988)
Hargrave v. Dugger, 832 F.2d 1528 (11th Cir. 1987) 82
<u>Harmon v. State,</u> 527 So. 2d (Fla. 1988)
<u>Harris v. Dugger,</u> 874 F.2d 756 (11th Cir. 1989)
Harrison v. Jones, 880 F.2d 1279 (11th Cir. 1989)

•

Hegwood v. State, 575 So. 2d 170 (Fla. 1991)
Herzog v. State, 439 So. 2d 1372 (Fla. 1983)
<u>Hewitt v. Helms,</u> 459 U.S. 460 (1983)
<u>Hicks v. Oklahoma,</u> 447 U.S. 343 (1980)
<u>Hill v. Lockhart,</u> 474 U.S. 52 (1985)
<u>Hitchcock v. Dugger</u> , 107 S. Ct. 1821 (1987)
Holland v. State, 503 So. 2d 1250 (Fla. 1987)
<u>Hopt v. Utah</u> , 110 U.S. 574 (1884)
<u>Horace v. Wainwright</u> , 781 F.2d 1558 (11th Cir. 1986)
Horton v. Zant, 941 F.2d 1449 (11th Cir. 1991) 61
<u>Illinois v. Allen,</u> 397 U.S. 337 (1970)
Industrial Clearinghouse v. Browning Mfg., 953 F.2d 1004 (5th Cir. 1992)
<u>Jackson v. State,</u> 17 FLW S268 (Fla. April 30, 1992)
<u>Jacobs v. Singletary,</u> 952 F.2d 1282 (11th Cir. 1992)
<u>James v. Singletary</u> , 957 F.2d 1562 (11th Cir. 1992)
<u>Jennings v. State</u> , 583 So. 2d 316 (Fla. 1991) 8
<u>Johnson v. Zerbst</u> , 304 U.S. 458 (1938)

Jones v. Thigpen, 788 F.2d 1101 (5th Cir. 1986), rehearing denied with opinion,
795 F.2d 521 (5th Cir. 1986) 50
Kenley v. Armontrout, 937 F.2d 1298 (8th Cir. 1991)
<u>Kimmelman v. Morrison,</u> 106 S. Ct. 2574 (1986)
<u>Kimmelman v. Morrison,</u> 477 U.S. 365 (1986)
King v. Strickland, 748 F.2d 1462 (11th Cir. 1984)
<u>Kokal v. State</u> , 456 So. 2d 444 (Fla. 1984)
<u>Kubat v. Thieret</u> , 867 F.2d 351 (7th Cir. 1989) 61
Laughner v. United States, 373 U.S. 326 (1967)
Lemon v. State, 498 So. 2d 923 (Fia. 1986)
<u>Lewis v. United States</u> , 146 U.S. 370 (1892)
Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586,
98 S. Ct. 2954, 57 L.Ed.2d 973 (1978)
<u>LoConte v. Dugger,</u> 847 F.2d 745 (11th Cir. 1988)109
<u>López v. State,</u> 536 So. 2d 226 (Fla. 1988) 2
<u>Magill v. Dugger,</u> 824 F.2d 879 (11th Cir. 1987) 82
<u>Magwood v. Smith,</u> 608 F. Supp. 218 (D.C. Ala. 1985)
Magwood v. Smith, 791 F.2d 1438 (11th Cir. 1986)

<u>Manson v. Brathwaite</u> , 432 U.S. 116 (1977) 33
<u>Mason v. State</u> , 489 So. 2d 734 (Fla. 1986)
<u>Masterson v. State</u> , 516 So. 2d 256 (Fla. 1987)
<u>Mauldin v. Wainwright</u> , 723 F.2d 799 (11th Cir. 1984) 75
<u>Maynard v. Cartwright</u> , 108 S. Ct. 1853 (1988)
<u>Maynard v. Cartwright</u> , 486 U.S. 356 (1988)
<u>McCrae v. State</u> , 510 So. 2d 874 (Fla. 1987) 82
<u>McMann v. Richardson</u> , 397 U.S. 759 (1970)
<u>Meachum v. Fano,</u> 427 U.S. 215 (1976)
<u>Mendyk v. State</u> , 592 So. 2d 1076 (Fla. 1992)
<u>Menendez v. State</u> , 368 So. 2d 1278 (Fla. 1979), <u>appeal after remand</u> , 419 So. 2d 312 (Fla. 1982)
<u>Menendez v. State</u> , 562 So. 2d 858 (Fla. 1st DCA 1990) 93
<u>Messer v. Florida,</u> 834 F.2d 890 (Ilth Cir. 1988) 82
<u>Middleton v. Dugger</u> , 849 F.2d 491 (11th Cir. 1988)
<u>Mikenas v. State</u> , 460 So. 2d 259 (Fla. 1984)
<u>Miller v. Pate</u> , 386 U.S. 1 (1967)
<u>Mitchell v. State</u> , 595 So. 2d (Fla. 1992)

•

(

0

•

•

•

<u>Muhammad v. State</u> , No. 75,055 (Fla. June 11, 1992)
<u>Napue v. Illinois,</u> 360 U.S. 264 (1959)
<u>Nealy v. Cabana,</u> 764 F.2d 1173 (5th Cir. 1985) 50
<u>Neil v. Biggers</u> , 409 U.S. 188 (1972)
<u>Nero v. Blackburn</u> , 597 F.2d 991 (5th Cir. 1979)
<u>Nibert v. State</u> , 574 So. 2d 1059 (Fla. 1990) 87
<u>O'Callaghan v. State,</u> 461 So. 2d 1354 (Fla. 1984)
<u>Olschefsky v. Fischer</u> , 123 So. 2d 751 (Fla. 3d DCA 1960)
<u>Omelus v. State</u> , 584 So. 2d 563 (Fla. 1991)
<u>Parker v. Dugger,</u> 111 S. Ct. 731 (1991)
<u>Pate v. Robinson,</u> 383 U.S. 375 (1966)
<u>Penry v. Lynaugh</u> , 109 S. Ct. 2934 (1989)
<u>Pentecost v. State</u> , 545 So.2d 861 (Fla. 1989)
<u>Perri v. State</u> , 441 So. 2d 606 (Fla. 1983)
<u>Perry v. State</u> , 522 So. 2d 817 (Fla. 1988)
<u>Pope v. State</u> , 441 So. 2d 1073 (Fla. 1983)
Powell v. Alabama, 287 U.S. 45 (1952)

€

<u>Proffitt v. Florida,</u> 428 U.S. 1242 (1976)
Proffitt v. Wainwright, 685 F.2d 1227 (11th Cir. 1982)
<u>Provenzano v. Dugger,</u> 561 So. 2d 541 (Fla. 1990) 8
<u>Rembert v. State</u> , 445 So. 2d 337 (Fla. 1984)
<u>Riley v. State</u> , 366 So. 2d 19 (Fla. 1978)
<u>Riley v. Wainwright</u> , 517 So. 2d 656 (Fla. 1987)
Roberts v. Louisiana, 428 U.S. 325 (1976) 61
<u>Rogers v. State</u> , 511 So. 2d 526 (Fla. 1987)
<u>Roman v. State</u> , 528 So. 2d 1169 (Fla. 1988)
<u>Rose v. State</u> , No. 74,248 (Fla. May 28, 1992) 12
<u>Santos v. State</u> , 591 So. 2d 160 (Fla. 1991) 85
<u>Savage v. State,</u> 16 F.L.W. 647 (Fla. 1991) 74
<u>Sielaff v. Williams,</u> 423 U.S. 876 (1975)
<u>Simmons v. United States</u> , 390 U.S. 377 (1968)
<u>Sims v. Florida,</u> No. 77,616 (Fia. June 11, 1992)
Skipper v. South Carolina, 476 U.S. 1,
106 S. Ct. 1669, 90 L.Ed.2d 1 (1986)
Smith v. State, 382 So. 2d 673 (Fla. 1980) 12

•

0

<u>Smith v. Wainwright</u> , 799 F.2d 1442 (11th Cir. 1986)
<u>Spaziano v. Florida,</u> 468 U.S. 447 (1984)
<u>Squires v. State</u> , 513 So. 2d. 138 (Fla. 1987)
<u>Stano v. Dugger</u> , 921 F.2d 1125 (11th Cir. 1991) (en banc)
<u>State v. Crews,</u> 477 So. 2d 984 (Fla. 1985) 11
<u>State v. Hamilton</u> , 448 So. 2d 1007 (Fla. 1984)
<u>State v. Hurd,</u> 86 N.J. 525, 432 A.2d 86 (1981)
<u>State v. Kokal,</u> 562 So. 2d 324 (Fla. 1990)
<u>State v. Lara,</u> 581 So. 2d 1288 (Fla. 1991) 61
<u>State_v. Michael,</u> 530 So. 2d 929 (Fla. 1988)
<u>State v. Sireci</u> , 502 So. 2d 1221 (Fla. 1987) 11
<u>Stevens v. State</u> , 552 So. 2d 1082 (Fla. 1989)61, 82
<u>Stokes v. State</u> , 548 So. 2d 188 (Fla. 1989)
<u>Strickland v. Washington</u> , 466 U.S. 668 (1984)
<u>Stringer v. Black</u> , 112 S. Ct. 1130 (1992)
<u>Suarez v. State</u> , 481 So. 2d 1201 (Fla. 1985) 93
<u>Tedder v. State</u> , 322 So. 2d 908 (Fla. 1975)

<u>Thomas v. Kemp</u> , 796 F.2d 1322 (11th Cir. 1984) 50
<u>Thompson v. Dugger</u> , 515 So. 2d 173 (Fla. 1987) 82
<u>Turner v. State</u> , 530 So. 2d 45 (Fla. 1987)
<u>Tvler v. Kemp</u> , 755 F.2d 741 (11th Cir. 1985) 50
<u>United States ex rel. Williams v. Twomev,</u> 510 F.2d 634 (7th Cir.), <u>cert. denied sub nom.</u>
<u>United States v. Bagley</u> , 105 S. Ct. 3375 (1985)
<u>United States v. Ballard</u> , 779 F.2d 287 (5th Cir. 1986)
United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648 (1984)
<u>United States v. Fessel,</u> 531 F.2d 1278 (5th Cir. 1979) 74
<u>United States v. Wade</u> , 388 U.S. 218 (1967)
<u>Vaught v. State</u> , 442 So. 2d 217 (Fla. 1983) 11
<u>Vitek v. Jones,</u> 445 U.S. 480 (1980)
<u>White v. State</u> , 403 So. 2d 331 (Fla. 1981)
<u>Williams v. Griswald,</u> 743 F.2d 1533 (11th Cir. 1984) 101, 105
<u>Woodson v. North Carolina,</u> 428 U.S. 280 (1976)
Workman v. Tate, 957 F.2d 1339 (6th Cir. 1992) 52
Zant v. Stephens, 462 U.S. 862 (1983)

•

•

Ö

•

Zeigler v. State,	
452 So. 2d 537 (Fla. 1984)	 12

•

0

.

•

6

0

Ģ

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On June 10, 1983, Eduardo López was indicted on one count of first degree murder and related offenses arising from an incident which occurred on January 29, 1983, in Coral Gables, Florida. María Pérez-Vega, the mother of the victim in this case, was unable to identify or descibe the three intruders who broke into her home in the early morning hours of January 29. Frustrated due to the lack of evidence in the case and the inability of Mrs. Pérez-Vega to describe her assailants, detectives had Mrs. Pérez-Vega hypnotized, at which time she provided a clearer description of the shooter. A composite drawing was completed thereafter. Mr. López was arrested on May 23, 1983.

Following his arrest, Mr. López was represented by Dade County Public Defender Brian McDonald. On October 28, 1983, the Public Defender filed a Certificate of Conflict of Interest, and the court then discharged the Office of the Public Defender from its representation of Mr. López (See R.27). On November 16, 1983, the trial court appointed William Castro to represent Mr. López.

In the ensuing months, Mr. López, through Mr. Castro, negotiated a plea arrangement with the Dade County State Attorney's Office. Under the terms of the agreement, Mr. López would plead guilty to all three counts of the indictment and receive concurrent sentences, including a life sentence with a minimum mandatory 25-year term before parole eligibility on the first degree murder charge. In exchange for the life sentence, Mr. López was to testify against the codefendants. The plea agreement also specified that if Mr. López did not fulfill his part of the agreement, the guilty plea would stand, the sentence would be rescinded, and the state would be entitled to seek the death penalty.

The plea was entered on June 13, 1984. On June 24, 1984, Mr. Castro submitted a Motion and Affidavit for Attorney's Fees for Special Assistant Public Defender (R. 188-90). The last entry on the Motion was Mr. Castro's charge for conducting Mr. López's plea and sentencing (R. 189). Mr. Castro never informed Mr. López that he was discontinuing his representation, and

indeed did not formally withdraw as counsel until spring 1985 (R. 805-06). Until that time, Mr. López was under the belief that he was being represented by an attorney, and that Mr. Castro was that attorney. Keith Haymes was appointed as counsel on March 18, 1985. It was during the lapse of time between the time the plea was entered and Mr. Haymes' appointment that problems with the plea emerged. During this period, Mr. López had requested to consult with Mr. Castro; Mr. Castro was even contacted by the State Attorney's Office regarding the fact that Mr. López wished to speak with him. Mr. Castro failed to contact his client. On May 14, 1985, the state filed a motion to enforce the plea agreement because Mr. López was not cooperating with the state. The motion was granted after a hearing on August 1, 1985 (R. 861).

Pursuant to the plea agreement, the state announced its intention to seek the death penalty against Mr. López. On December 2, 1985, Mr. López waived a penalty phase jury. The penalty phase was held before Circuit Court Judge Bruce Levy from December 3 to December 6, 1985. At the penalty phase, Mrs. Pérez-Vega testified to the events that transpired on January 29, 1983, including the fact that Eduardo López was the shooter. No mention was made of the fact that her testimony was hypnotically refreshed.

On February 13, 1986, the court sentenced Mr. López to death. The judge found that "the Defendant has shown no mitigating circumstances, either statutory or non-statutory" (R. 435). The court found as aggravating factors that Mr. López was previously convicted of another capital felony or a felony involving the use or threat of violence, that Mr. López committed the murder while engaged in the commission of a burglary, and that the murder was committed for the purpose of avoiding or preventing a lawful arrest or effectuating an escape from custody (R. 435-36).

This Court affirmed the conviction and sentence on direct appeal. <u>See López v. State</u>, 536 So. 2d 226 (Fla. 1988). On September 28, 1990, Mr. López filed an Amended Motion to Vacate Judgement of Conviction and Sentence pursuant to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.850. The trial court denied

all requested relief on May 21, 1991, without the benefit of an evidentiary hearing on any of the claims. This appeal was then perfected.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The trial court erred in summarily denying Mr. López's 3.850 motion without first ordering state agencies to comply with public records requests made pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and without conducting an in camera inspection of files which were claimed to be exempt from Chapter 119.

2. The trial court erred in summarily denying Mr. López's 3.850 motion without ordering an evidentiary hearing. Mr. López is entitled to a full evidentiary hearing on all the claims raised in his Rule 3.850 motion. Mr. López pled specific, detailed claims for relief, and under this Court's case law, an evidentiary hearing was required because the files and records do not conclusively establish that he is not entitled to relief.

3. During the critical stages of his case, Mr. López was abandoned by trial counsel, William Castro, and left to deal with the prosecutors and police on his own. Mr. López, on the advice of defense counsel, agreed to enter a guilty plea to a life sentence in exchange for his providing testimony against his co-defendants. Under the terms of the plea which counsel agreed to, if Mr. López failed to cooperate with the prosecution, he would not be allowed to withdraw his guilty plea, but the state would be entitled to seek the death penalty. Due to the ever-present threat of a death sentence, the period of time during which the co-defendants' cases were being prosecuted was obviously a critical one for Mr. López. After entering the plea, however, Mr. López was completely abandoned by Mr. Castro. After the plea was entered in court, Mr. Castro filed a motion for attorney's fees, yet he never formally withdrew from his representation of Mr. López until almost a year later. He never informed Mr. López that he was discontinuing his legal representation after the plea was entered, yet this is what he did. Mr. López believed that Mr. Castro was his attorney. Mr. López had initially been cooperative with the prosecutors and the

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