FILED SID J. WHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

NOV 28 1992

CLERK, SUPREME COURT.

By Chief Deputy Clerk

EDUARDO LOPEZ,

Appellant,

v.

CASE NO. 78,228

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

MARY LEONTAKIANAKOS ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR NO. 510955

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

<u>Point I:</u> The state attorney complied with the defendant's public records request pursuant to Section 119.01 Florida Statutes. The other requests alleged by the defense were never specifically brought to the attention of the trial court and should be deemed waived as not timely made.

Point II: The trial court's denial of the defendant's Rule 3.850 motion without an evidentiary hearing was proper as the motion, record and file conclusively show that he is not entitled to relief.

Point III: The defendant's first lawyer Mr. Castro never "abandoned" him as claimed. Mr. Castro withdrew from the case only after its closure with the defendant's guilty plea,

<u>Point IV:</u> Mr. Castro did not render ineffective assistance by failing to challenge the surviving victim's identification and/or testimony on the ground that she underwent hypnosis. At the time of the defendant's guilty plea hypnotically refreshed testimony was admissible in Florida courts.

<u>Point V</u>: Mr. Castro did not render ineffective assistance by failing to investigate the defendant's alleged incompetence and for allowing him to enter a guilty plea. The issues of the defendant's competence and the voluntariness of his plea were dealt with and rejected on direct appeal. They are now procedurally barred.

<u>Point VI</u>: Mr. Haymes did not render ineffective assistance at the penalty phase of the defendant's case by allowing the defendant to waive jury and by not presenting more mitigating

evidence. Both those claims could have been raised on direct appeal and are now procedurally barred.

Paint VII: Mr. Haymes did not render ineffective assistance by failing to investigate the defendant's alleged incompetence, The defendant was found competent by all four experts appointed to examine him. This issue was raised and rejected on direct appeal and is now procedurally barred.

<u>Point VIII:</u> The defendant's death sentence does not rest upon an improper aggravating circumstance. This issue could have been raised on direct appeal and is now procedurally barred.

Point IX: The trial judge did not preclude the defendant from presenting competent evidence of mitigation. This issue could have been raised on direct appeal and is now procedurally barred.

Point X: Whether the trial judge erred in finding no mitigation is a procedurally barred issue as it was raised and rejected on direct appeal.

<u>Point XI:</u> The testimony of Mr. Castro at the defendant's hearing to enforce or vacate his plea did not deprive the defendant of the effective assistance of counsel. The defendant waived the attorney-client privilege when he testified that Mr. Castro had not discussed the merits of his case and lied to him about the sentence in order to get him to plead.

Point XII: The defendant's claim that he was not provided
with a qualified interpreter is procedurally barred as it could
have been raised on direct appeal.

<u>Point XIII:</u> The defendant 's claim that he was absent from critical court proceedings is procedurally barred as it could have been raised on direct appeal.

Point XIV: The State did not withhold exculpatory evidence and there is no reasonable probability that the allegedly undisclosed material would have rendered a different result.

<u>Point XV:</u> Whether the avoiding arrest aggravating factor was properly applied in this case is procedurally barred as it was raised and rejected on direct appeal.

<u>Point XVI</u>: Whether the defendant's plea was voluntary is procedurally barred as it was raised and rejected on direct appeal.

<u>Point XVII</u>: The defendant's alleged incompetence was raised and rejected on direct appeal and it is now procedurally barred.

<u>Point XVIII:</u> The defendant's waiver of jury was voluntary as is evident in the court's colloquy. Moreover, this issue could have been raised on direct appeal and is now procedurally barred.

POINT I

WHETHER THE ALLEGED WITHHOLDING OF RECORDS IN THE POSSESSION OF VARIOUS ENTITIES VIOLATED THE DEFENDANT'S EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS AS WELL AS HIS RIGHTS UNDER CHAPTER 119 FLORIDA STATUTES.

The defendant claims that his public records requests pursuant to Section 119.01 Florida Statutes were not honored and ignored by the trial court at the denial of his Rule 3.850 motion. A review of the record reveals that this claim is without merit.

The state attorney did make her files available to the defense, withholding only those portions that are privileged, i.e. work product. The defendant now wants this Court to order the production of the withheld documents or order the trial court to conduct an in camera hearing to determine if the undisclosed portions were properly withheld.

To now request an in camera hearing is nothing more than a delay tactic on the part of the defendant. This request should have been brought to the attention of the trial judge prior to the taking of this appeal. The cryptic reference to the undisclosed materials in the defendant's Amended Rule 3.850 motion did not properly bring this complaint to the trial court's attention (PC-R 29-30). As this alleged non-compliance was not specifically brought to the attention of Judge Levy it should be deemed waived by this Court.

Moreover, the defendant is not automatically entitled to an in camera hearing. The state attorney made available to the defendant all of the records which fall within the provisions of the Public Records Act. The Court in <u>Kokal</u> agreed that not all documents in the state's file are public record, <u>State v. Kokal</u>, 562 So.2d 324, 327 (Fla. 1990) and stated that if the state attorney "had a doubt as to whether he was required to disclose a particular document, he should have furnished it in camera to the trial judge for a determination." <u>Id</u>. As the state attorney had no doubt, no such inspection was needed in this case.

The other records sought by the defendant are not within the control of the State of Florida. The defendant seeks access to the polygrapher's, Mr. Slatery's records ⁵ as well as the records of Dr. Rodriguez, the hypnotist. ⁶ A review of the record reveals that this request has also been waived as it was not timely made or preserved.

There is nothing in the record to suggest that the defendant made these requests except for the allegation in the brief that such requests were denied. According to the defendant, the offices of Mr.' Slatery and Dr. Rodriguez requested a court order to comply. This request, however, was not pursued by the defendant. By not following the proper course of action to secure these records this defendant has waived his request and should be procedurally barred from litigating it in this or future appeals. 7

This defendant was given three polygraph examinations after his plea was entered.

Ms. Perez-Vega, the surviving victim, underwent hypnosis prior to assisting the police prepare a composite sketch of her son's killer. See Point IV of this brief.

The defendant claims that this was raised in his Amended Rule 3.850 motion. The cryptic reference to his requests in his

Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, provides the mechanism for public records requests as well as the remedy for their unwarranted denial. under the present scenario, Mr. Slatery and Dr. Rodriguez are asked to turn over information and when they allegedly refuse to do so without a court order, the state is then accused of withholding information from the defendant.

This not only results in lack of notice to these individuals but it also places the State of Florida in the impossible situation of securing files not in its custody or control. The State has no more access to Mr. Slatery's or Dr. Rodriguez's files that the defendant has. Even if this Court found Mr. Slatery's and Dr. Rodriguez's files to be "public" and, therefore, subject to disclosure it further needs to look at the purpose to be served by such disclosure.

The disclosure of public records in this context is permitted in order to allow the defense to determine if any <u>Brady</u> violations exist. Nothing in Mr. Slatery's or Dr. Rodriguez's files can result in a Brady claim under the facts of this case.

Mr. Slatery's reports were part of the State Attorney's file and made available to the defense. There is nothing in those reports to even hint at the existence of a Brady claim. This defendant pleaded guilty and agreed to submit to polygraph examinations. He was not, however, found to be in breach of his

motion does not bring this non-compliance to the trial court's attention nor does it provide adequate notice to the involved parties, Mr. Slatery and Dr. Rodriguez. A defendant must make a proper and sufficient request for disclosure and only when such request is denied may it properly be made part of a Rule 3.850 motion. Mendyk. v. State, 592 So.2d 1076, 1081 (Fla. 1992). This procedure was not followed in the instant case.

plea agreement for failing a polygraph but rather for his outright refusal to testify against his co-defendants. A request for access to Mr. Slatery's files is nothing more than a delay tactic and a means through which to file additional Rule 3.850 motions beyond the two year limit.

The same is true for Dr. Rodriguez's files. The detectives that were present for the victim's hypnosis session testified in deposition as well as in court. Detective **Fiallo** testified that the victim was simply asked to relive the incident and that the only difference between her pre and post-hypnosis description of her son's killer was that after hypnosis she was better able to describe his hairline and clothing. ⁸ Moreover, this session took place before the defendant's guilty plea and is therefore an issue which cannot now be litigated in a collateral proceeding.

The defendant is not entitled to relief under this claim. By not properly pursuing his requests he has waived them and should not be allowed to raise them in this appeal from the Rule 3.850 denial. Moreover, a review of the facts reveals that this is nothing more than a delay tactic on the part of the defendant as none of the material sought is of any consequence to the disposition of his appeal. Relief should be denied.

 $^{^{\$}}$ For a discussion of the merits of this issue, see Point IV.

For a discussion of the merits of this issue, see Point IV.

POINT II

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT'S DENIAL OF THE DEFENDANT'S RULE 3.850 MOTION WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING WAS ERRONEOUS

The defendant claims that the trial court's denial of his Rule 3.850 motion was erroneous. ¹⁰ He argues that he was entitled to an evidentiary hearing because he pleaded "substantial claims of ineffective assistance of counsel, among other fact-based claims for relief" (Appellant's Brief, pg. 11).

A Rule 3.850 motion can be denied without a hearing when (1) the "motion and the files and records of the case conclusively show that the prisoner is entitled to no relief," Fla.R.Crim.P. 3.850; Stano v. State, 520 So.2d 278, 280 (Fla. 1988); Agan v. State, 503 So.2d 1254, 1256 (Fla. 1987), or (2) the issue is one that either was or should have been raised on direct appeal. Francis v. State, 529 So.2d 670, 672 (Fla. 1988); O'Callahan v. State, 461 So.2d 1354, 1355 (Fla. 1984). All of the defendant's claims were found by Judge Levy to fall in either of these two categories.

Judge Levy was the presiding judge for all proceedings in this case. This is an unusual case because Judge Levy presided over a lengthy evidentiary hearing on whether to enforce or vacate this defendant's plea. ¹¹ During that hearing, the

Judge Levy denied the defendant's Rule 3.850 motion without a hearing finding that the motion, record and file conclusively show that the defendant is entitled to no relief. (PC-R 472).

Judge Levy was the finder of fact at the hearing and had the opportunity to evaluate the testimony of the defendant's prior counsel, Mr. William Castro, whom he found to be credible. Conversely, he rejected the defendant's testimony.

defendant raised many of the same issues he is now raising in his Rule 3.850 motion. In his motion and through his testimony the defendant claimed that he did not understand the terms of his plea (R 686-87). He alleged that his lawyer, Mr. Castro, did not explain the consequences of his guilty plea to him (R 697). Moreover, he claimed that the interpreter provided had not translated to his satisfaction (R 706). In essence, this defendant maintained that his plea was not voluntary.

After hearing testimony and carefully evaluating the issues, Judge Levy denied the defendant's motion to vacate his guilty plea. ¹² This Court should also deny the defendant relief and affirm the trial judge's denial. The defendant is not entitled to an evidentiary hearing as the issues raised can conclusively be resolved by the record, or were or should have been raised on direct appeal.

The trial judge who presided over the defendant's guilty plea and sentencing is in the best position to decide whether or not the defendant is entitled to relief. See Agan v. State, 503 So.2d 1254, 1256 (Fla. 1987).

POINT III

WHETHER DEFENSE COUNSEL'S ALLEGED ABANDONMENT OF THE DEFENDANT DURING THE PENDENCY OF HIS CASE DEPRIVED THE DEFENDANT OF EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL IN VIOLATION OF HIS SIXTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS

The defendant claims that his attorney's withdrawal from his case after the defendant entered into a plea agreement with the State of Florida was tantamount to abandonment and resulted in his current predicament. The defendant argues that this "abandonment" deprived him of the effective assistance of counsel. A review of the record, however, reveals that this claim is without merit.

This court has said that a defendant "who asserts ineffective assistance of counsel faces a heavy burden." Blanco v. Wainwright, 507 So.2d 1377, 1381 (Fla. 1987). First, the defendant must establish that counsel's omissions fall "outside the wide range of reasonable professional assistance." Id. "Second, a claimant must show that the inadequate performance actually had an adverse effect so severe that there is a reasonable probability that the results of the proceedings would have been different but for the inadequate performance." Id.

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